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To trace the history of even a small New England town, shows that it is representative of the great
type to which it belongs, a form of society and government unsurpassed by any the world has ever seen.
The town had a share in every change and movement in the land, and her social life was a part of the life
of the day.

If the story lacks picturesqueness, it possesses the interest that always attracts to an account of the
doings of former generations of men who have lived and finished their work.

The settlement of Hopkinton, called Quansigamog by the Indians, owes its beginning to a bequest of
money made to Harvard College by an English gentleman, Edward Hopkins.

This money was invested in 1710 by the Trustees in land on this elevated ridge, and the territory thus
acquired was named for the donor - Hopkinstown or Hopkinton, and leased to tenants for one penny an
acre. At this time the town was a frontier and a wilderness, with no carriage road, no churches, no public
house; only a sweep of forest, with here and there an Indian trail, or a woodman’s cottage.

The earliest settlements commenced between 1710-12, along the most frequented path leading
towards Sudbury.

The rents were paid until the people, who were very poor, become dissatisfied and delinquent when
the matter was settled by the payment of $10,000, $8,000 by the Legislature, $2,000.00 by the tenants, to
the Corporation of Harvard College.

This institution then surrendered to those who occupied them, all rights and titles to these lands.

Hopkinton originally contained 25,000 acres and was bounded by Sudbury, Sherborn, Mendon,
Sutton, and Westboro.

In 1735 by an act of General Court, about 4,000 acres were set off and formed a part of Upton, and in
1846 a part was taken to form the town of Ashland.

Hopkinton now contains about 18,500 acres.

The Town was incorporated December 13, 1715, and the first town meeting held under the charter
met on March 25th, 1724, when over thirty voters were present.

The land is hilly and rocky but well watered, the sources of branches of the Charles, Concord, and
Blackstone being found here.

The town includes three large ponds, Lake Whitehall, North Pond, and Echo Lake.

The Mineral Springs situated west of Lake Whitehall were discovered in 1816, and, at one time were
celebrated as a fashionable resort.

A four-horse stage service was established from Boston to the Springs and this continued until the
Boston and Albany railroad reached Westboro in 1835 when visitors were conveyed by coaches to that
town. About 1860 the buildings were destroyed by fire and never re-built.

Within the original limits of the town, the Rev. John Eliot, previous to 1669, had founded a band of
“Praying Indians,” on the northern slope of Magonco Hill.

This tribe, afterwards, sold their lands to the trustees of the Edward Hopkins legacy and joined the
Natick Indians.

The town furnished soldiers for the Spanish War of 1741, twelve men and a boy, of whom only one
man and the boy returned.

When war was declared between France and England in 1746, among those who served for England
was Patrick Shea, father of Daniel Shea, the leader of “Shea’s Rebellion.”

Many from Hopkinton were engaged in the French and Indian wars which began in 1754.

Although there was a large Royalist and Tory element here in those early days, their influence upon
the sturdy settlers and pioneers counted for nothing, and they remained true to the principles inherited
from the Pilgrims themselves.

While the records show that there was less than 200 families in the town, as soon as the news arrived
of the battle of Lexington, the Minute Men of Hopkinton mustered at once, and went forward to aid in
the struggle and took an active part during the whole Revolutionary War.

All helped in the cause of Freedom, the men at home run bullets and the women spun and wove
blankets.



In the War of 1812, the town furnished its full quota, and Col. Joseph Valentine held a command in
Boston.

For the War of the Rebellion, Hopkinton sent 425 men, sixteen over all demands. Of these, three were
commissioned officers. On account of this war, the town expended $30,000 and nearly the same amount
was raised for State Aid.

Jonathan Whittemore was Town Treasurer during all the years of the war. On the Board of
Selectmen, N. P. Coburn served four years and E.A. Bates the entire five years.

Within a year after the organization of the town it was voted to build a Meeting House, as the church
building was called in those days. Previous to this, the meetings of the town were usually held at the
house of Mr. John How, at the top of “Meeting House” hill, the home, afterwards, of Aaron Reed, more
recently occupied by Mr. Colleary.

The Meeting House was raised in December, 1725, and so far completed that the town held its first
meeting in it in June, 1726.

The building was forty-eight feet long and thirty-five feet wide and stood some rods south of the
present church.

It had neither cupola nor steeple and remained unpainted till 1773. It contained two bodies of seats,
one for men, the other for women, and some pews built by those who could afford the expense, also one
pew near the pulpit for persons “hard of hearing.”

The rich sat forward, the poor in the rear, children and negroes in the gallery.

The men came to church on horseback, their wives riding behind them, sometimes with children also
upon the same animal, and women were known to carry a young child five or six miles to attend church.

The young people usually walked and, as shoes were very expensive, the young women often carried
their shoes and stockings until near the church when they dressed their feet and appeared in their seats in
time for service.

The minister gave out a hymn and, there being no hymn books in the audience, the deacon read a line
and the congregation struck up a given tune, some singing correctly, others far from it.

The pastor turned his hour glass, possibly fortifying himself with a pinch of snuff and began his long
sermon.

Rev. Samuel Barrett was the first minister. His salary was sixty pounds in money and his firewood.
Mr. Barrett’s home stood on the site of the present Town Hall and as he lived at a time when the colored
people were held as slaves, he had a number of servants.

In Mr. Barrett’s diary are recorded the names of all persons who were members of his church and of
all whom he baptized.

Church government was strict. In his diary are also found the names of all who transgressed a
certain commandment and the fact that public confession was made of the fault.

Except to attend “meeting,” no travelling was allowed on the Sabbath Day.

Mr. Barrett held his office for nearly half a century and was buried in the old cemetery near the
present church.

The second minister was Rev. Elijah Fitch who died in 1788. He was a fine scholar and a poet. He
was succeeded by Rev. Nathaniel Howe who was settled for life in 1791. He remained for forty-six years
and passed away in 1837 at the age of seventy-three. His Century Sermon was delivered in 1815 when
Hopkinton was one hundred years old.

He was noted for his plain speaking and was the author of numerous proverbs and maxims,-a
favorite one being: “The second vice is lying, the first is running in debt.”

One of the most distinguished of his successors was Rev. John C. Webster, who was installed in 1839
and remained pastor twenty-seven years.

The Hon. Alexander Hodgdon of Boston, in 1773, presented to the church a Bible, as a mark of
gratitude to the townspeople for favors received during his exile from Boston, his native town, in 1775
and 1776.

The Bible was brought from Boston by a man on horseback.

All the illustrations in it were cut out, so that children might not be tempted to go into the pulpit, to
handle the precious volume.



Not far away from the church lived a family known as the Smith tribe. The heads of the tribe were
five brothers, Joe, Aaron, Bill, Moses and Nat. They had no use whatever for the inside of the church, but
had forms and ceremonies of their own in which the building figured.

Nathan, the oldest, was known as “God Smith” and always wore a band on his hat with the words: “I
am God.” Once a week, with “God Smith” at the head of the tribe marched around the church seven
times, blowing trumpets and shouting: “Glory to Gideon.”

There was but one child permitted to each family.

For a number of years before his death, “God Smith” sealed his lips and was never known to speak.

In 1829 the first rude church edifice was removed and used as a barn on the estate of Col. Joseph
Valentine (now the residence of Dr. G.S. Thompson), and afterwards again moved and occupied as a boot
factory by Gov. Wm. Claflin and Crooks Bros.

When this old building was taken down, Deacon J. D Stewart secured some of the timber and from it
made a chair for the present church, also a reading desk and a baptismal font.

Mr. Howe hoped the old meeting house, built in 1725 with square uncomfortable pews, with its huge
“sounding board” above the high pulpit, would last as long as he did; but when the parish decided to
build another house, he gave all the assistance in his power.

When in January, 1830, the new meeting house was dedicated, he preached a memorable sermon.

A basement story was placed under his church for a Town House, the Town to have the use of it and
the Bell by paying the Parish $1,000.00.

This room under the church, the entrance on the west side, became the first Town Hall.

There was also in the basement a smaller room, used for Sunday School, prayer meeting and singing
school. This church building was destroyed by a fire in 1882, after which the present structure was
erected.

St. Paul’s Episcopal church was established in 1745, by Rev. Roger Price, Rector of King’s Chapel. He
built a small edifice and endowed it with a glebe of 180 acres, situated on Cordaville Road, the most
extensive gift of its kind to the church in this country.

The land is now of little value, some adjacent land inherited from Rev. Roger Price, has been sold to
the State Forestry Department for $5.00 per acre.

This first church of St. Paul’s society was blown down in the great gale of 1815.

After officiating here three or four years, Mr. Price returned to England and was succeeded by Rev.
John Troutbeck.

Among the 20 members in 1752 appear the names of Sir Harry Frankland (who lived nearby) as a
vestryman of St. Paul’s and Lady Frankland (Agnes Surriage) who passed seven years in the parish and
was constant in her devotion to the church, also Patrick, father of Daniel Shea.

In 1818, Bishop Griswold consecrated a new church, which was used until 1865 when it was burnt to
the ground.

These earlier buildings stood near the site of the four-room school building, corner of Main and Ash
Streets.

Until 1892 there were services at rare intervals at various places, then for about six years in a small
hall in Bridges block.

Through the influence and exertions of the Rector, Rev. Waldo Burnett, the present beautiful edifice
was erected and dedicated in June, 1898.

The land for this church, also for the building site for the public library was a gift from Mrs. Sarah E.
Whitin, a granddaughter of Col. Joseph Valentine.

January 8, 1814, twenty-three persons at the South schoolhouse in Hopkinton formed themselves into
a Hopkinton and Holliston Religious Society, choosing a committee to raise the salary of Rev. Isaac
Bonney. They met alternately in the schoolhouse and in Holliston.

In 1816 a house of worship, thirty by forty feet, was built on land of Moses Phipps. This house was
afterwards used as an engine house.

Rev. Isaac Boney, the first preacher, visited the society once in four weeks, having other towns on his
circuit.



In 1835, the society in Hayden Rowe was formed into a station with about fifty members and had
Rev. Sidney Putnam as minister.

For some time previous to 1851 the Methodist society was discontinued, but May 1¢t of that year the
church reorganized with Rev. T. Willard Lewis as pastor.

Services were held in Academy Hall for a year, Lee Claflin bearing nearly the entire expense. Later
meetings were held in the Chapel Building and Town Hall. In 1855 Mr. Lee Claflin donated land for a
church and parsonage and paid the cost of the church erected the same year.

The death of Mr. Claflin in 1871 deprived the church and society of its greatest benefactor, though his
sons, William and Wilbur F., continued their interest in its welfare.

From the time of the great fire in Dr. Sherman’s pastorate, the church lost many families by removal
from town. But by various methods of successful social work, aided by intense earnestness on the part of
the church, the society has kept the building in repair and added improvements and inspiring services
are regularly held.

The first Catholic church, known as St. Malachi’s, stood on Cedar Street, on the site of the residence of
Edward Carr, Esq. It was a wooden building sixty by forty feet, begun in 1851.

As early as 1846 Hopkinton was included in Milford Parish and was visited by the priest who
traveled from place to place to care for the people of his charge.

Previous to this time the Catholics of Hopkinton attended Mass at private houses in this town and in
Milford.

The building of the church was a great undertaking and was made a success by the exertions of Fr.
Family, then of Saxonville, later transferred to Milford.

The real beginning of the Hopkinton Parish dates from the appointment of Fr. Barry as the first
resident pastor in 1866.

Afterwards transferred to Rockport, he died there in 1883, but his remains lie in Hopkinton Cemetery
where St. John's C., T. and L. Society have placed a beautiful monument to his memory.

The erection of the present granite structure on Church Street, which cost $125,000 was commenced
in 1876, the first sod being turned by Rev. John P. Ryan.

Through many discouragements the work progressed until in September, 1889, the church was
dedicated, the ceremony being performed by Rev. Archbishop Williams of Boston.

Father Ryan’s labor was completed but he was not permitted to view it with mortal eyes.

His health became impaired by the great work, added to other manifold duties, and he started on a
southern tour, hoping to regain his health. In less than two months word was received of his sudden
death at St. Louis, March 26, 1881.

In his death the whole town felt a sense of personal loss and bereavement. His funeral was attended
by all classes and denominations, a tribute of honor to his memory.

On May 10, 1915, Rev. Father Keating announced that the church was free from debt, he having
made, during the preceding week, the last payment on the mortgage.

The Baptist church of Woodville was a branch of the first Baptist church in Westboro, and a
committee of three from the parent church acted with the branch on important questions.

The Westboro society having erected a new church in that town, the Woodville society purchased the
old church building and from the material, the Woodville church edifice was constructed and on
September 12, 1837 was dedicated with appropriate ceremonies.

The church had a membership of twelve in the December following.

Col. Albert Wood, in 1886, built the Chapel standing west of the church, and presented it to the
society to be used for religious and educational purposes.

Rev. Johnson Howard became a settled pastor in 1840, since which time church services have
continued without interruption....

While the town’s Poor Farm was located nearer the Woodville church than any other, the Overseers
had a pew reserved there for those at the Farm who desired to attend services.

In 1729 “It was put to vote whether the town would grant four pounds of money to be given to four
school dames that may be agreed with to encourage children to read,” passed in the affirmative. In the



same year it was voted that Mr. Peter How should be their schoolmaster for the year, the children to be
sent to his residence to be taught reading and writing.

In 1731 it was voted to give a schoolmaster three pounds a month for four months and six shillings a
week to the school dames for eight months.

The first mention of a schoolhouse is in 1743 when the town accepted a house “built by several
worthy and pious men, for the use of the school.”

The house stood on the training field or present common.

In the early days of Hopkinton, a parent having an unruly son brought the fact before the Town
Meeting and received an instruction as to the proper discipline.

Sewing was taught in the Dame’s Schools, especially the making of a sampler, a laborious piece of
work consisting of several alphabets of different styles, the work ending with a text of Scripture, the
whole embroidered on a square of canvas.

The girl who proudly exhibited a finished product of her stitching knew a satisfaction equal to if not
exceeding that of the damsel of today who receives her blue-ribboned diploma as a high school graduate.

In 1820 the Legislature appointed seven prominent men as Trustees of the Hopkinton School Fund.
This fund was created by the sale of lands given to the town by the Trustees of Edward Hopkins
Donation for the support of schools.

The lands to be sold consisted of the “Church Pasture,” so-called, which lay between the Holliston
Road and Milford Road and extended from the Meeting House in a southerly direction; also three lots
containing seventeen acres extending in an easterly direction on the County Road, as it was then called,
now Main Street toward Ashland.

The church pasture was laid out in eight lots, containing over forty acres, and was created in 1821 by
a so-called New Road, now Pike Street.

In 1825 the School Fund amounted to more than $3,700.00 and the interest, $180.00 was paid over for
the benefit of the schools, and this custom has continued up to the present time.

The meetings of the Trustees were held at the Stone House, a tavern kept by Samuel Valentine and
after his death by his widow, Mary Valentine.

A part of the church pasture was reserved for a training field, - now the Common - and “May
Training” was a general holiday in the town.

Under the school system of fifty years ago there were chosen at the annual town meeting, two
committees, called respectively, the school committee and the prudential committee, consisting of one
man.

The latter was nominated in each district annually and was invariably elected at the succeeding town
meeting.

He hired the teacher, provided the fuel and had charge of the schoolhouse in his district.

The school committee examined candidates for teachers, visited schools and made reports in writing
to the town upon their condition.

After some years, the election of a prudential committee was abandoned and in 1889, taking
advantage of a new law, a union with the town of Ashland was effected and a superintendent was chosen
for the two towns.

A private school was conducted about seventy years ago by a Mr. Wetherel in the old Hotel building
near the railroad station.

When the academy was built on Hayden Rowe Street, Mr. Wetherel was transferred and taught a
year being succeeded by Rev. Daniel J. Poor.

Upon Mr. Poor the Academy became a famous boarding school and many young men and women
from Boston and even more distant places received a thorough education.

The Academy gave way to the Free High School in 1851, Mr. Poor remaining at its head for five years.

His remarkable gifts as a teacher, shown afterwards on larger fields of duty, gave to the school a
lasting character.

After years of persistent endeavor on the part of the interested friends of the movement, a new High
School was erected by the town.

It stands on the site of the Dr. Bucklin mansion on Main Street.



It was dedicated on September 7, 1895, with an address of Hon. A.S. Roe of Worcester and singing by
pupils of the school.

Hopkinton has always made generous appropriations for schools and they are in a promising
condition.

The Hopkinton Library Society was formed in 1820. All who wished to become members could have
that privilege if they were approved by the Directors subscribed to the Constitution, paid $2.00 entrance
fee and twenty-five cents annually for six years.

Each member could take out two books at a time, to be returned in three months on penalty of
twenty-five cents fine for each book.

No book could be loaned to any person not a member of the society. If this rule were broken, the fine
was equal to the value of the book.

The Library contained no fiction, as very little was published at that time.

Plutarch, Paley’s Philosophy, Goldsmith’s Rome, Hume, The Spectator, Watts on the Mind, Life of
Bonaparte, Josephus, Young’s Night Thoughts were among the volumes on the Library shelves.

The scarcity of American writers is noticeable as there were few at this date.

About 1840 the State had a series of books prepared under the supervision of the Board of Education,
which was furnished, upon payment, to those towns that desired to introduce them.

These books treated upon scientific and historical subjects and were bound in a uniform style.

Fifty or more volumes were placed in each of the schoolrooms and were issued to the households in
the districts.

Much interest was manifested and the books were early read, but as no new books were added, the
interest declined and the books became scattered and lost.

The Young Men’s Christian Association gathered a library in 1867, which served the public long after
the organization had ceased to be operative, and its 2,000 volumes became the nucleus of the Hopkinton
Public Library incorporated in 1890.

The new edifice, one of the finest Public Library buildings in the state, was erected in 1894.

This was made possible by sons and daughters of the old town, resident and non-resident, who
generously contributed for this purpose, thus making accessible to all its people the best that has been
written in all times.

The architect of this fine building was Mr. Sanford Phipps of this town.

The Central Coffee House Company was formed in 1831, to build a Public House for the
accommodation of travelers.

Land was purchased of the Parish near the new Meeting House and some land adjoining owned by
Col. Valentine.

The tavern was to be called “The Central Coffee House” and was continued as a hotel for over fifty
years until burned in the “big fire” in 1882.

This house stood on the site of the present post-office block. It was built of brick, the workmen being
paid seventy-five cents a day of ten hours, the same for a team.

Idlers and minors were not permitted to remain drinking and idling and no profane or bad language
was allowed on the premises.

The Company also built a store on the site of the old Barrett house, where the Town Hall now stands
and in 1832 leased land between the store and tavern to Col. Valentine on which to build Mechanics’
Shops.

Trees were set out and wells dug by this enterprising company.

The Coffee House was purchased from the Company in 1837 by James Jackson of Unionville (now
Ashland) and afterwards owned by different persons.

On the third floor of the Coffee House there was a hall for dances.

Singing-master Bixby’s fiddle had a serious rival when the strains of “Money-Musk” and “Virginia
Reel,” distinctly audible, tantalized the ears of the pupils of the singing school, in session, in the vestry,
under the Meeting House, near by.

Though sometimes allowed as spectators, young unmarried people were seldom seen “on the floor”.



This form of amusement was not sanctioned by the churches, but professional and business men and
their wives, all of the highest respectability indulged occasionally but took their recreations rather
seriously.

The town increased from a population of 2,145 in 1840 to 4,340 in 1860. This was due to the
manufacture of boots and shoes within its borders.

In the early years of the town, the work of making shoes was not done in factories but in the homes of
the workmen or in small shops near their houses.

In this way work was afforded for the whole family, as there would be some part that each member
could assist in doing.

In 1820 Joseph Walker began using pegs for fastening the soles to the shoes, this being done by hand.

But when the pegging machine and others were invented, with steam power to run the machines, the
little shops were abandoned, and the home shoemaker became a factory operative.

Thus the manufacture of boots and shoes became the principal business, until in 1850, there were
eleven factories in this town.

Soon these manufactured goods amounted to more than a million dollars annually, but as this
amount increased from year to year, more machinery was used and fewer persons were employed.

The character of these former business men of Hopkinton justly deserves recognition.

They built up their interests by unremitting personal attention, giving conscientious care to every
detail. Their integrity equaled their diligence. Those who dealt with them knew that their statements
might be trusted.

They did not believe in any get-rich-quick speculations but practiced the old-fashioned virtues of
prudence, economy, and diligence.

In those days friendship in business had an existence, and while their outside charities were
numerous, many of their workmen received assistance from them at critical times.

Joseph Walker increased his business with the aid of his five sons, two of whom set up for themselves
in 1826. Mr. Lee Claflin commenced manufacturing in 1840 in Hayden Rowe, placing Lovett Bowker in
charge of the factory while he himself sold the goods at a store in Boston. This factory was afterwards
known as the firm of Bowker and Phipps.

Davenport and Gibbs began about this time, their shop standing on Main and Mt. Auburn Streets just
west of the old Mayhew house.

Wm. Claflin, N.P. Coburn & Co., commenced business in the old “Meeting House” previous to 1847,
but built a new shop in 1850.

Samuel and Abram Crooks manufactured from 1849 to 1853 in the J. Walker shop on Hayden Rowe
Street, then on Grove Street till 1860, when they built a large factory on Main Street.

Erastus Thompson’s first venture was carried on in the upper part of his store, which stood on the
site of the present Town Hall.

He removed his business in 1857 to a new factory, which building is now occupied as a car barn by
the Middlesex and Boston Ry. Co.

A. Coburn and W.F. Claflin began business in 1855 on Hayden Rowe Street. This firm in 1870
became A. Coburn & Sons who built a new factory, the old one having been destroyed by fire.

In Woodpville in 1808 the Hopkinton Sheeting Co. made cotton cloth in the first mill built on the
stream. This was the second mill to make cotton cloth in this country.

In 1820 Wm. B. and Albert Wood began to make cotton cloth.

In 1837 there were three cotton mills in town, one in Unionville, (now Ashland) owned by James
Jackson, and two in Woodville, one on the upper and one on the lower dam.

Twine was also manufactured by William and Albert Wood in the stone mill.

The lower water privilege was used at different times by a last factory, a tanning company and for
many years by the Coolidge Carriage Company.

In 1867, G. and F.W. Wood began the manufacture of boots and shoes in the old stone mill, afterward
building a new factory and remained in business five years.



Lake Whitehall has had a conspicuous part in the fortunes of Woodpville. At different times Boston
parties had interests in this section and for many years the city had considered the question of desirability
of its water as an addition to their supply.

By an act of the Legislature in 1894, Boston seized the lake and all its rights.

Some lands were bought and judgments satisfied but large indirect damage was done to the village.

The Coolidge Carriage Co., afterward carried on a business by steam power, and this manufacturing
is still an important item in the prosperity of Woodville.

Hopkinton Railroad, extending from Milford to Ashland was completed in 1872.

Having failed to meet its obligations, the mortgage on the road was foreclosed in 1883. At the sale,
the property was bought by George Draper of Hopedale who sold it to the Milford and Woonsocket R.R.
Co., which in turn leased it to the New York and New England R.R. Co. (now N.Y., N.-H. & HR.R\) for a
term of ninety-nine years.

The road has since been extended to Bellingham and Franklin.

The town had been agitating the question of the introduction of a water system for some years and
different sources of supply had been suggested. Reservoirs had been constructed near Coburn’s shop on
Hayden Rowe Street and also on Main Street, also drinking fountains in different places.

In 1879 a Boston firm was engaged to bore a well near the “steam mill” to furnish water for these
reservoirs, the contract demanding a flow of 300 gallons an hour.

In 1881 the town voted to drive two wells and erect a wind mill to do the pumping; also a reservoir
near Phipps” Box Factory and to lay pipes for fire and other purposes, the expense not to exceed
$15,000.00. The reservoir was to have a capacity of 112,500 gallons.

Improvements have been made from time to time, more wells driven, the tank enlarged, steam
substituted for wind power, till the town can boast a never failing supply of pure water, ample for all
necessary purposes.

Early in 1896, a banquet was given at the Reservoir house in Woodyville in honor of the extension of
the water works to that village.

Hopkinton has been particularly unfortunate in losing property by fire, and to that “good servant but
bad master” may be traced her decline in the business world.

The first serious fire occurred on March 29, 1876, when a blaze was discovered in the storehouse of
the Claflin-Coburn factory on Main Street, situated on land in the rear of what is now Braithwaite’s block.

The flames communicated to the factory, also to the barn in the rear of the old Coffee House, and to a
small barn owned by the Callanan estate, all of which were destroyed.

The loss of the factory was severe blow to the business interests of the town as about five hundred
people were employed there. The property loss was nearly $200,000.

During the following month the concern commenced the manufacture of boots in the Mansfield
factory on Hayden Rowe Street and in the Box Mill.

In May a new shop built in the form of a T, was erected on the site of the burned one and business
was resumed in this new structure the main building of which was 130 feet by 40 feet and three stores in
height.

The second great conflagration which the old town suffered, took place in 1882, when on April 4th
about 3 A.M.,, a fire broke out in the Town Hall building, which wiped out the finest business part of
Main Street.

The Town Hall, the new Claflin-Coburn factory (then known as Bridges & Co.), Post Office Block, the
Coffee House, Chapel Building, Congregational church and house of L.H. Wakefield (formerly the S.B.
Walcott mansion), Mahon Bros. store, remembered by the older residents as “Bates” Exchange” and two
small dwelling houses were destroyed. The money loss by this fire was placed at about $400,000.

The third great fire occurred on the morning of March 19, 1900, starting in Bridges” Block which stood
on the site of the Phipps Building on Main Street. This fire destroyed Bridges’ Block, Town Hall and two
stories of the Savings Bank Block which was afterward roofed over and left as it stands today.

The pecuniary loss by this fire was in excess of $100,000.

The old Hand Tubs have been superseded by a fine Motor Combination Wagon, purchased in 1913.
But no greater pride in its possession than was centered in the Magonco, the first engine owned by the



town. This became the property of Ashland when that town was set off in 1846. But Hopkinton firemen
coveted the little old tub and one dark night, they visited Ashland and brought the Magonco home with
them. However, in the law suit that followed they were obliged to return it to Ashland.

Hopkinton’s elevated situation gives its people the finest views for miles around. It is said that on a
clear day can be seen Bunker Hill Monument, the Dome of the State House, a lighthouse in Boston
harbor, Miles Standish monument, and sunrise on the ocean.

Our town is also noted for its trees. The beautiful grove of pines on the estate of the late W.B. Claflin
and many others in that vicinity were set out by Mr. Claflin.

The pine trees in the old church cemetery were seeded from “Madam Price’s Pine,” a lone tree, the
last of a group, that grew on the eastern lawn of the present Dr. Thompson place. This lone pine was
destroyed by lightning.

One hundred years ago, a commission from Boston selected one hundred young elms on the Levi
Woolson farm in the eastern part of the town, to set out on Boston Common.

The only English elm in town, said to have been planted by Madam Price herself, stands on the lawn
of the residence of Mrs. Emma F. Pierce, formerly the Joseph Walker mansion.

Of the magnificent elms that formerly lined Main Street for over a century, but one remains but
nothing but decay caused their removal.

The noble ash trees on the street which bears that name were brought from Connecticut by Rev.
Elijah Fitch, the second minister of the old church.

Ash trees were selected, as they were supposed to be obnoxious to rattle snakes which infested the
ledges in that vicinity.

There being neither time nor space in which to indulge in them, reminiscences have been omitted
from this history, no doubt making its perusal less interesting.

Also the lines between fact and tradition have been sharply drawn.

It is a fact that Henry Ward Beecher, while a teacher in this town, was dropped out of the schoolroom
window and gently deposited in a snow bank by one of his pupils, a stalwart young fellow named
Johnson.

The tales that the “Father of this Country” was entertained at the old Stone Tavern, while on his way
to take command of the army at Cambridge, and that Daniel Webster spent his week-ends here visiting a
young lady, and worshipped in the old church on Sunday, lack verification.

Much of romance is interwoven with the life of the town and this subject has been fully treated in
Brampton Sketches, Agnes Surriage, Old Town Folks, and Life of Sir Harry Frankland, all to be found in
our Public Library.

The old cemetery near the church, being small and crowded, having been used for over a hundred
years, was closed as a burial spot and a new one opened on Hayden Rowe Street on the lot occupied later
by the residence of Samuel Crooks.

Still later a larger site was secured on higher ground on Mt. Auburn Street, which is still in use.

St. John's parish also obtained land adjoining this and the cemetery on the old Southboro road was
seldom used afterwards.

The surroundings of Woodville cemetery show unremitting care, and the burial grounds in Hayden
Rowe and East Hopkinton are still used by families having lots in them.

In April, 1895, the electric car line was in operation from Framingham to Westboro and the subject of
electric lighting was soon considered.

The first lights to take the place of the kerosene lamps on the streets were furnished by power from
the Coolidge plant at Woodville.

In 1907, the Edison Company took the contract and streets and houses were supplied.

When the trolley line to Milford was proposed it met with opposition by some, but it was later built
and proved a benefit to all.

For over a hundred years, no necessity was felt for new roads.

The only roads were the old highway to Southboro on which a Catholic cemetery was later placed,
the County Road, running from east to west, and the roads to Milford and Holliston.

About seventy years ago the Cordaville road was built, Silas Moore being contractor.



Church and Grove Streets were cut through a part of Col. Valentine’s estate, called Pratt’s grove,
hence the name, Grove Street.

More recently other streets were opened and settled.

The Village Lyceum was an institution in the early days of the town.

About fifty years ago the Reform Club flourished and even then “suffrage for women” was discussed
but records show that the question was decided in the negative.

The Soldiers’ Monument was erected in 1892. Its cost was $1,000.00, paid for by public subscriptions.
The lot of land on which it is located was donated by Mr. Abram Crooks.

The late Mr. C.B. Holman was treasurer of the Memorial Association and took an active part in
securing funds for the monument.

There was also fixed upon the wall of the open vestibule of the Public Library Building, a tablet
bearing the names of fifty-four patriots who lost their lives in the War of the Rebellion.

With the growth of near-by manufacturing centres, there is an increasing demand for homes in our
town, and it is becoming more and more, each year, a place of residence.

Farming, the ancient means of livelihood, still continues, but every day witnesses hundreds of our
citizens, men and women, going to and returning from their places of business in other towns, by electric
and steam trains.

Great changes have taken place in the last century but even greater ones will be recorded by the pen
that writes the history of Hopkinton’s three hundredth anniversary.



HOPKINTON

Like Rome of old, upon her hills,
Rock-ribbed and granite gray,

Stands Hopkinton, whose name and fame
We celebrate today.

From East to West her spires are seen
Above the streams and lea,-

The crowning height of beauty
“Twixt Wachusett and the sea.

Adown her rugged, rocky slopes
And onward to the tide,

With waters from perennial springs,
Three noted rivers glide.

Beside the Blackstone to the South,
The busy mills tower high,

And the breath from giant chimneys
Obscures the azure sky.

‘Mid scenes of beauty to the East
The winding Charles is seen,
And stately trees of ancient birth
Adorn its banks so green.

A city proud upon the Bay
O’erlooks its onward tide,

Till its silvery sheen fore’er is lost
In the greedy ocean wide.

Alone and lonely to the North
The Concord steals away;

No cruel hook disturbs the pools
Where lights and shadows play.

A mission grand these streams fulfill
While hastening to the main,-

They cool the lip of honest toil

And ease the brow of pain.

Fair Echo Lake upon the South
Maintains a tell-tale shore,

That, insolent, repeats your words
With mocker o’er and o’er.

The cunning hand of artifice
Searched all the forest way;

And now in chains its waters sweet
Flow through a village gay.
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Lake Whitehall, grand and beautiful
The western hills enfold;

Here lived and loved another race,-
The red man, fierce and bold.

Where once the wigwam’s smoke curled low
The rustling grains now wave,

And careless feet, unknowing, press

His long-forgotten grave.

When southern zephyrs loose the chains
Forged by the Frost King’s might,

Old Whitehall rouses from his gloom
And shines in beauty bright.

Enchanting Lake! In all they moods
We love thee evermore,-

When sun-kissed waves are glistening,
Or storm clouds hover o’er.

Wachusett and Monadnock

Rise in the northern sky,

Their summits pierce the ether blue
Above the clouds on high.

And East the “Gilded Dome” is seen,
‘Neath which the wise men prate,

And fashion laws that shall preserve
The honored “Old Bay State.”

“Tis said we worship by-gone days,
Our former grand estate;

That our hand is cold in greeting
The stranger at our gate.

Dame Rumor adds - to make amends -
As on her way she goes,

That we are faithful to our friends,
And generous to our foes.

The dear old Town! Heaven bless her
With a record clean and bright,

The pride of her loyal children, -

Her Motto- “For the Right!”
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